From: Matsick, Rob

To: Ullrich, Betsy

Cc: Stenger, Daniel F.

Subject: [External_Sender] RE: approval of transfer of license [closing delay notification]
Date: Thursday, October 14, 2021 2:28:26 PM

Attachments: L06-15099-01.627351.pdf

Dear Ms. Ullrich,

Per the attached transfer of control approval from September 17 for NRC License No. 06-15099-01
(licensee Mirion Technologies (Canberra), Inc.), you requested notification if the closing date for the
transaction will be later than 30 days after approval. We now believe that closing will occur on or
around October 20, and we will submit the required notice once closing has occurred.

Please let us know if you have any questions. Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Best regards,

Rob

Rob Matsick

Associate

Hogan Lovells US LLP
Columbia Square

555 Thirteenth Street, NW
Washington, DC 20004-1109

Tel: +1 202 637 5600
Direct: +1 202 804 7787
Fax: +1 202 637 5910

Email: rob.matsick@hoganlovells.com
www.hoganlovells.com

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

From: Ullrich, Betsy <Elizabeth.Ullrich@nrc.gov>

Sent: Friday, September 17, 2021 2:36 PM

To: Stenger, Daniel F. <daniel.stenger@hoganlovells.com>

Cc: Matsick, Rob <rob.matsick@hoganlovells.com>; Fishman, Stephanie B.
<stephanie.fishman@hoganlovells.com>; searl@mirion.com; Terry Schwager
<tschwager@canberra.com>

Subject: approval of transfer of license

[EXTERNAL]

Mirion Technologies (Canberra), Inc.
License No. 06-15099-01

Docket No. 030-08562

Mail Control No.627351
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UNITED STATES
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION
REGION |
2100 RENAISSANCE BLVD.

KING OF PRUSSIA, PA 19406-2713

September 17, 2021

Adrian Wolff, Corporate Counsel
Mirion Technologies (Canberra), Inc.
800 Research Parkway

Meriden, Connecticut 06450

SUBJECT:  MIRION TECHNOLOGIES (CANBERRA), INC., CONSENT TO PROPOSED
TRANSFER, MAIL CONTROL NO. 627351

Dear Wolff:

By the letter dated June 29, 2021 (Agencywide Documents Access and Management System
(ADAMS) Accession Number ML21203A253), Mirion Technologies (Canberra), Inc. (Mirion
(Canberra)). Mirion (Canberra) and its parent company, Merion Technologies, Inc (Mirion)
requested written consent by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) to a proposed
indirect transfer of control of NRC Materials License No. 06-15099-01. In accordance with
Section 184 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended (AEA), and 10 CFR 30.34, the NRC
consents to the transfer.

Mirion (Canberra) is authorized by the NRC for the possession and use of byproduct material
under Part 30 for research and development, testing and calibration, and for the distribution of
ionizing radiation measuring equipment to persons who are specifically licensed. By the letter
dated June 29, 2021, Mirion (Canberra) requested written consent to the indirect transfer of
control of its license from the NRC. Because the license was issued under 10 CFR Part 30,
“‘Rules of General Applicability to Domestic Licensing of Byproduct Material,” the NRC must find
that the transfer is in accordance with the provisions of the AEA and, if so, must give its consent
in writing prior to the transfer, in accordance with Section 184 of the AEA and 10 CFR 30.34(b).
Additionally, the NRC staff reviewed the indirect transfer of control request using the guidance in
NUREG-1556, Volume 15, Revision 1, “Consolidated Guidance About Materials Licenses —
Guidance About Changes of Control and About Bankruptcy Involving Byproduct, Source, or
Special Nuclear Materials Licenses,” dated June 2016.

10 CFR 30.34(b) states:

(1) No license issued or granted pursuant to the regulations in [parts 30] through
36, and 39 nor any right under a license shall be transferred, assigned or in
any manner disposed of, either voluntarily or involuntarily, directly or
indirectly, through transfer of control of any license to any person, unless the
Commission shall, after securing full information, find that the transfer is in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and shall give its consent in writing.

(2) An application for transfer of license must include:
(i) The identity, technical and financial qualifications of the proposed
transferee; and
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(if) Financial assurance for decommissioning information required by [10
CFR] 30.35.

As described in ADAMS package accession number ML21203A052, the indirect transfer will
result from Mirion (Canberra)’s ultimate parent company, Mirion Technologies (TopCo), Ltd
becoming a subsidiary of GS Acquisition Holdings Corp Il (GSAH). Based on the information
provided, we understand that Mirion will become a publicly-traded company. The NRC staff
finds that the licensee request adequately provides a complete and clear description of the
proposed transaction, consistent with 10 CFR 30.34(b) and Chapter 5 and Appendix E of
NUREG-1556, Vol. 15, Rev. 1. The sufficiency of the description is evaluated below.

The request for an indirect transfer of ownership was posted for public comment on the NRC
website for 30 days in accordance with 10 CFR Part 2, Subpart M and as described in NRC’s
Regulatory Issue Summary 2014-08, Revision 1. No comments were received from members
of the public.

Mirion (Canberra) is not required to have financial assurance for decommissioning because of
the types and amount of material authorized in its license. The NRC staff finds that the
licensee’s request adequately provided information for financial assurance for decommissioning,
consistent with 10 CFR 30.34(b) and Chapter 5 and Appendix E of NUREG-1556, Vol. 15, Rev.
1.

Further, the NRC conducted an inspection of Mirion (Canberra) on April 21 and May 20, 2021,
at 800 Research Parkway, Meriden, CT. The NRC identified a Severity Level IV violation and a
Non-Cited violation. Corrective actions were completed within four days.

Additionally, as described in its request, Mirion (Canberra) commits that it:

A. Will maintain records important to decommissioning;
B. Will continue to abide by all the constraints, conditions, requirements, representations
and commitments of the current license.

Based on these commitments, the NRC staff finds that the licensee request adequately
documents the constraints, license conditions, requirements, representations, and commitments
made by the transferee, consistent with 10 CFR 30.34(b) and Chapter 5 and Appendix E of
NUREG-1556, Vol. 15, Rev. 1.

GSAH is a special purpose acquisition company established in 2018. It is registered in
Delaware and has an office in New York, NY. As part of the request for written consent to the
transfer of control, the NRC staff virtually met, because of the ongoing Covid-19 Public Health
Emergency, with the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of GSAH. During this meeting, the CEO of
GSAH provided additional information regarding GSAH and its acquisition of Mirion
Technologies (TopCo), Ltd. Based on the submissions of Mirion and the virtual meeting with
the CEO of GSAH, the NRC has reasonable assurance that the licensed material and licensed
activities will be used for its intended purpose and not for malevolent use.

An environmental assessment for this action is not required because this action is categorically
excluded under 10 CFR 51.22(c)(21).

The staff has reviewed the request for indirect transfer of control of 06-15099-01. The NRC
staff finds that the indirect transfer of control is in accordance with Section 184 of the AEA and
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10 CFR 30.34(b) and consents to the transfer. Please note that you will need to notify us
promptly, in writing, after the transaction has been finalized and include a signed copy of the
sales agreement confirming completion of the transaction. If this planned sale has not been
consummated within 30 days of the date of this letter, please notify us in writing.

Future changes in the licensee’s name, licensed use, licensed materials, licensed location,
persons responsible for licensed material, or other changes to the corporate organizational
structure require submission of a request to amend the license or a request to transfer the
license. NRC approval must be received prior to implementation of any such proposed change.

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390, a copy of this letter will be available electronically for public
inspection in the NRC Public Document Room or from the Publicly Available Records
component of NRC’s Agencywide Documents Access and Management System (ADAMS).
ADAMS is accessible from the NRC website at https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html. If
you have any questions regarding this letter, please contact Betsy Ullrich at (610) 337-5040 or
via electronic mail to Elizabeth.Ullrich@nrc.gov.

Sincerely,
. Digitally signed by
EI |Zabeth Elizabeth Ullrich
. Date: 2021.09.17 14:27:56
Ullrich ok

Betsy Ullrich, Senior Health Physicist
Commercial, Industrial, R&D

and Academic Branch
Division of Nuclear Materials Safety
Region |

License No. 06-15099-01
Docket No. 030-08562
Mail Control No. 627351

cc: Terrence W. Schwager, Radiation Safety Officer
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MIRION TECHNOLOGIES (CANBERRA), INC., DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2021

DOCUMENT NAME: [\nrc.gov\nrc\R1\Office\DNMS\WBL Documents\WBL License Cover
Letter\L06-15099-01.627351.docx
SUNSI Review Complete: Betsy Ullrich

After declaring this document “An Official Agency Record” it will be released to the Public.
To receive a copy of this document, indicate in the box: “C” = Copy w/o attach/encl “E” = Copy w/ attach/encl “N” = No copy
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This message contains yourletter approving the indirect transfer of the license. You will not
be receiving a paper copy of the document in the regular mail. You should savea copy of
the document, either in electronic format or paper, for your records. Please contact me by
email or at 610-337-5040 if you have any questions about the license and letter.

Betsy Ullrich

Betsy Ullrich, Senior Health Physicist
USNRC Region |

2100 Renaissance Boulevard, Suite 100
King of Prussia, PA 19406
610-337-5040 (office)

240-704-4575 (cell)

Elizabeth.ullrich@nrc.gov

If you would like to know more about how we are managing the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our firm then take a
look at our brief Q&A. If you would like to know more about how to handle the COVID-19 issues facing your business then
take a look at our information hub.

About Hogan Lovells
Hogan Lovells is an international legal practice that includes Hogan Lovells US LLP and Hogan Lovells International LLP.
For more information, see www.hoganlovells.com.

CONFIDENTIALITY. This email and any attachments are confidential, except where the email states it can be disclosed; it
may also be privileged. If received in error, please do not disclose the contents to anyone, but notify the sender by return
email and delete this email (and any attachments) from your system.
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
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